
CLARIFICATIONS TO QUESTIONS MADE BY POTENTIAL TENDERERS WITHIN THE FRAMEWORK OF CALL FOR TENDERS ECHO/A3/FRA/2012/04

N.B.: mutatis mutandis, the answers to questions for Lot 1 refer equally to the same chapters in Lot 2, wherever the provisions are the same.
	Questions
	Answers

	Contract Notice

	Kindly confirm that documents should be addressed to the attention of “The Evaluation Sector” and not to the attention of “The Evaluation Function” as indicated in this paragraph.
	The documents have to be sent to the Evaluation Sector. Since the Evaluation Sector is in charge of the Evaluation Function in DG ECHO, one denomination or the other does not make any difference.

	Invitation to tender

	ad point 2.) 

According to the invitation to tender, the tender should be submitted in one of the official languages of the European Union.

We assume that any documentary proof (e.g. proof of enrolment in the trade register (cf. Annex A1, page 10)) which is in the language the tenderer (or one of its consortium members) is registered in, can be submitted in its original language, if this original language is one of the official languages of the European Union. 

In consequence, we do not see the need to translate documentary proof into the main language (e.g. English) the tender is written and submitted in.

Kindly confirm.
	The assumption is correct. Original documents do not need to be translated.

	ad point 3.a) 

The invitation to tender read “in which case the evidence of the date of dispatch shall be constituted by the postmark or the date of the deposit slip”. 

It is our understanding that, in order to submit our offer on time, it will be sufficient to hand over our offer to the courier service on 04/02/2013, and obtain the deposit slip dated 04/02/2013 from the courier service.

Kindly confirm.
	This is correct. The offer has to be sent at the latest at the date indicated, as shown in the postmark or the deposit slip or the courier service.

It can also be delivered by hand in the conditions mentioned in the Invitation to tender.

	Annex A: General Specifications for the Framework Contract

	point 5.4.)

The general specifications define that Category I (II) experts need to dispose of 7 (4) years of professional experience “connected with the sector(s) concerned and the type of tasks to be performed”.
Could you kindly confirm that this criteria is fulfilled if an expert has a minimum of 7 (4) years of professional experience, which he has gained in several of the sectors mentioned on page 6 of Annex A1, and that it is not required that an expert in question has worked (7) 4 years exclusively within one specific sector?
	This understanding is also correct. Professional experience has to be proven for the whole of the sectors mentioned in the Specifications. Exclusive dedication to only one of the sectors is one of the possibilities, but not a requirement. Of course the actual assessment of the alleged experience is subject to the appraisal of the Committee for the Evaluation of Offers.

	Annex A1: Specifications for Lot 1: Multiple Framework Contract with Reopening of Competition for the Evaluation of Humanitarian Aid and Civil Protection Activities

	ad point 1, 6th bullet point) 

The specifications for Lot 1 stipulate “stocktaking activities” as one of the tasks to be expected under Lot 1. 

Could you kindly clarify whether these stocktaking activities could form part of specific evaluations only, or also be a separate event, e.g. to present findings from several evaluations or meta-evaluations?


	As mentioned in the text, this assignment regards "drawing up horizontal lessons, recommendations and best practices from civil protection response activities and/or exercises". I.e., this kind of activity should be a separate exercise aimed at drawing lessons from several activities, previously evaluated in a formal or informal manner.

	ad point 2.1. g) Conflict of interest
What consequences in terms of exclusion can be foreseen for tenderers currently implementing policy-related or operational activities for DG ECHO?


	The assessment of potential conflicts of interest on the side of tenderers is the responsibility of the committee, on a case-by-case basis, during the evaluation of offers. Therefore, no specific response can be provided beforehand.

However, some elements can be clarified:

There could be a conflict of interest if persons involved in the implementation of policy-related or operational activities funded by DG ECHO were called to evaluate the same activities that they are developing or have developed.

It is impossible to give an a priori answer to this question before the committee is acquainted with the persons included in the tender, which cannot possibly happen before the opening of tenders.

Additionally, the conflict of interest is more likely to arise at the level of specific contracts (for which the notion of conflict of interest will also be assessed during the reopening of competition for Lot 1) rather than at the overall level of the Framework Contract. In that case, moreover, the conflict of interest would most probably apply to the case of individual experts and not to the overall framework contract as such.
The main point is that the issue of conflict of interest will be considered on an ad-hoc basis and cannot be prejudged at this stage. The previous explanation, however, aims at clarifying the way in which this assessment will be done.

	ad point 2.2) Professional capacity
The specifications for Lot 1 read that “Tenderers' capacity will be assessed in the light of the criteria below, on the basis of the documents provided by the tenderers according to section 3.1.2 and where applicable other information that the Commission may judge relevant.” 

Could you kindly clarify what other information that the one detailed in point 3 of the same document might be judged relevant? This would allow us to provide the correct and necessary information for your evaluation and judgement.

	This paragraph refers to the fact that according to point 9 of the invitation to tender, "if clarification is required or if obvious clerical errors in the tender need to be corrected, the contracting authority may contact the tenderer provided the terms of the tender are not modified as a result".  

During the evaluation of offers, the Commission might request complementary data in order to clarify the information already provided in order to assess the professional capacity as well as any other selection criteria.  E.g. additional information or certification might be requested for better understanding the content of previous professional assignments.
The information provided in that case should complete but in no manner modify the contents of the Tender.

	ad point 2.2 – SC.3) 

The specifications for Lot 1 read that “Tenderers must possess the necessary skills and expertise to fulfil the requirements for Lot 1, and at least five years' experience of direct relevance to the tasks concerned. In the case of consortia, this requirement will be applied to each of the members of the consortium”.
It is our understanding that, in case of a consortium, the proposed consortium lead company must possess the necessary skills and expertise to fulfil the framework contract management requirements for Lot 1, and at least five years' experience of direct relevance to managing and leading framework contract consortia. This requirement will be applied to the consortium lead company only. 
Kindly confirm.
	No, there is a mistake in the text. In the case of consortia, at least one member of the consortium must have at least five years' experience of direct relevance to the tasks concerned.

	ad point 2.2 – SC.4) core team
The specifications for Lot 1 read that “The 10 members of the core team”, while the general specifications indicate that the Core Team needs to be “made up of at least ten experts in case of Lot 1” (Annex A, page 5). 

1. Could you kindly confirm that it will be allowed to present more than 10 core team members? 
2. Kindly confirm that all experts proposed will be taken into consideration for the evaluation purpose?
	1. Yes the core team can be made up of more than ten members, provided that they all comply with the requirements.

2. Only the experts identified in the offer as members of the core team will be taken into consideration for the assessment of this criterion.

	ad point 2.2 – SC.4, 4th bullet point, 5th “–“ ) 

Could you provide us with a definition of “protection”? Does this refer to “civil protection”?


	All the items in this list refer to humanitarian aid.

Protection is a broad concept, approached in different ways from fundamental delivery of humanitarian assistance to institution-building and deployment of peacekeeping troops. International laws define the global framework for the protection of populations. Human rights law, international humanitarian law and refugee law define obligations for States and warring parties to provide assistance to civilians, as well as to prevent from behaviours violate human rights. Humanitarian Charter, Good Humanitarian Donorship Principles, EU Consensus on Humanitarian Aid, they all put protection at the core of the objectives of humanitarian aid.

Protection is embedded in European Commission Directorate-General for humanitarian aid (ECHO) mandate, as defined by the Humanitarian Aid Regulation and by the EU Consensus on Humanitarian Aid.

	ad point 2.2. – SC.6) 

1. Kindly confirm that this line should read “Tenderers must demonstrate that they have the permanent human and technical resources to carry out the work” and not “Tenderers must demonstrate that they have the permanent human and material resources to carry out the work”. Reference is made to Annex A.1. point 3.1.2.2 – 5.a.

2. Otherwise, could you kindly clarify the proof to be delivered with regard to demonstrating “material resources”?


	Both terms, material and technical, refer to the need to demonstrate that, in addition to the human resources needed for the implementation of individual assignments, the tenderers have the necessary technical and material to ensure the continuity of work (secretariat, storage of information and documents, IT equipment). Proof has to be delivered exclusively through the elements defined in point 3.1.2.2 – 5.a..

	ad point 2.3.1 – QC.2)

Kindly confirm that this line should read “Proposed methodological approach and tools for each of the tasks defined for Lot 1 in section 1” and not “Proposed methodological approach and tools for each of the tasks defined for Lot 1 in section 4”.
	Confirmed. This is typo. The sentence has to be read as "Proposed methodological approach and tools for each of the tasks defined for Lot 1 in section 1 – max 20 points -."

	 ad point 3) 

1. Kindly confirm that no original documents have to be included into the tenderer’s administrative information and technical offer, with exception to the “tender submission form”.

The specifications for Lot 1 read “Tenders must be constituted of: 1. Administrative Information (…) 2. Technical offer”.

2. It is our understanding that both, the Administrative Information and the Technical Offer together form the “Technical tender” that is referred to in the invitation to tender, page 1 and 2 (“electronic master copy of the Technical Tender” and “two sealed envelopes, one containing the technical tender (…)”). 
Kindly confirm.
	1. The documents in the administrative information have to be originals in the sense that they have to be signed by a duly authorised representative of the tenderer or, in the case of consortia, of each of the members.
In the case of the documents for the assessment of the selection criteria, the documents have to be originals or authentic copies of the originals.

2.This understanding is correct.

	ad point 3.1.1.1, 4th paragraph) 

Kindly confirm that, at tender stage, the tenderer does not yet need to present a copy of the documents mentioned to proof criterion 2.1.(a)-(h).


	This is correct. Only the winning tenderers will be requested to provide the original for the documents listed under section 3.1.1. This requirement applies to all members of the consortium, in the case of consortia.
For the presentation of the bidder, as regards the exclusion criteria, the tenderer will only need to sign the declaration included as Annex D to the Invitation to Tender, for each Lot for which an offer is presented.

	ad point 3.1.2.) 

The specifications for Lot 1 read that “In order to assess the selection criteria (see section 2.2) tenderers and each member of a consortium shall provide the documents described below.”

It is understood that, in the case of consortia:
· at least one of the members of the consortium must comply with SC.1 (cf. Annex A1, page 6);

· at least one of the members of the consortium must comply with SC.2 (ibid);
· SC.3 will be applied to each of the members of the consortium; while

· the assessment of SC 4, 5 and 6 will be done for the consortium as a whole (cf. Annex A1, page 7).

We therefore kindly seek clarification whether the following documentary proof 

a) needs to be submitted by each consortium member; 

b) needs to be submitted by each consortium member, with an additional overview provided that shows the accumulated information; or

c) whether it is sufficient to provide an overview that shows the accumulated information for all consortium members:

· list of customers (cf. Annex A1, page 10)

· list with the names of members of the core team (cf. Annex A1, page 10)

· list of at least 15 potential experts (cf. Annex A1, page 10)

· total number of full-time and part-time staff (cf. Annex A1, page 11)

· number and list of full-time and part-time staff directly involved in the support team (cf. Annex A1, page 11)
	No. Even if not all members of the consortium have to comply with all the selection criteria, each member of the consortium has to provide all the documents required for the assessment of the selection criteria.

However, the list of the members of the core team, the list of potential experts and the number of staff involved in the contract has to presented jointly (broken down by the company of origin for each member of staff) and should be presented as a single document for the whole consortium 

	ad point 3.1.2.2 – 2 [on SC.3 REFERNCES])
The specifications for Lot 1 read that “a full description of the tenderer's references in the field of evaluation in general, and the evaluation of humanitarian aid and civil protection activities in particular, including”.

Could you kindly clarify the kind of information in order to comply with the criteria “full description”?


	The information to be detailed for this SC should explain since which date the tenderer has been operating in the requested fields plus the information requested in points a. and b. below, which we quote again here:
a. examples of work (covering at least three years) directly relevant to the tasks covered by Lot 1 (as defined in section 1), indicating how the company, companies and partners of the tenderer have carried out the same or a related type of work in the past. Where a company has been operating for less than three years examples of previous experience gained elsewhere must be provided;

b. a list of the customers for whom the tenderer has worked in the last three years. Where a company has been operating for less than three years, the company must provide the list of customers since its inception.

	ad point 3.1.2.2 – 2.a [on SC.3 REFERNCES, examples of works])
The specifications for Lot 1 read that “examples of work (covering at least three years) directly relevant to the tasks covered by Lot 1 (as defined in section 1)”. Point 2.2. – SC.3 of the same document, however, requires “at least five years' experience of direct relevance to the tasks concerned”.

1. Could you confirm whether the references to be provided have to cover a minimum of 3 or 5 years of experience related to the tasks stipulated in point 1 of the same document?

2. Could you kindly clarify on how to calculate relevant projects with overlapping calendar months that are carried out by the company with the participation of different staff and/or consultants? It is our understanding that the minimum of 3/5 years of experience are to be counted as 36/60 project months and not as 36/60 calendar months. 

The specifications for Lot 1 read that “examples of work (covering at least three years) directly relevant to the tasks covered by Lot 1 (as defined in section 1), indicating how the company, companies and partners of the tenderer have carried out the same or a related type of work in the past”.

3. Could you kindly clarify what kind of “examples of work” is here referred to? It is our understanding that this does neither refer to project outputs such as samples of evaluation reports or their executive summaries, nor to proofs of performance. Kindly confirm.

4. Should samples of project outputs have to be submitted, kindly inform how many.

We assume that “examples of work” refers to “project references”. In consequence:

5. Kindly confirm that no specific format is required for references.

6. Kindly clarify the type of information required: project’s title, main objective and services carried out, client, duration, location, contract value, and if applicable partner company.

7. Kindly confirm if projects proposed as references must be closed or can we also propose on-going projects as reference?

8. Kindly confirm that no minimum number and/or maximum number of references needs to be presented.

9. It is our understanding that references do not have to cover all types of evaluations mentioned under "1. Specific tasks to be implemented under Lot 1” (same document, point 1). Kindly confirm.
	1. The references have to cover at least three years, even if experience has to be demonstrated before that date.
2. Experience is to be counted in calendar years, not as an addition of total days for projects. References have to be provided for projects implemented in the course of three calendar years, independently of the duration of the specific assignments.

3. Examples of work refers to a description of assignments of any kind carried out relating to the evaluation-related task described in Section 1. "Examples" is used in the sense that it is not necessary to list all assignments carried out during that period of time, even if it is not forbidden either.

4. "Samples of projects" are not necessary.

5. No specific format is required.

6. The information suggested is relevant for the assessment: project’s title, main objective and services carried out, client, duration, location, contract value, and if applicable partner company. Additional details can be provided.

7. On-going projects can also be mentioned.

8. No minimum or maximum number is required. The time scope is the relevant element.
9. References do not have to cover all types of tasks mentioned in section 1. However it is important, in order to assess the capacity of the tenderer, that for individual tenderers, or for consortia as a whole, examples cover a substantial part of the list.



	ad point 3.1.2.2 – 2.b [on SC.3 REFERNCES, list of customers])

1. Kindly confirm that this should include all costumers the company has worked for, including those not active in the humanitarian field.

2. Kindly confirm that no specific format is required for this list of costumers.

3. Kindly confirm that in this list, only the customer’s name is to be included and no other information such as the costumers’ addresses, or details on work carried out for the specific customers.

4. Kindly confirm that this list is not limited to customers worked for during the last 3/5 calendar years.
	1. It refers to customers for which the company has worked in evaluation-related areas, not only in the field of humanitarian or civil protection activities.

2. No specific format is required.

3. Only the customer name is required, provided that the name itself allows identifying correctly the customer. Otherwise, details should be provided (address, nationality, competences…).
4. None of the lists used for evaluating the selection criteria is limited in terms of contents: they only set minimum time limits (3 or 5 years).

	ad point 3.1.2.2 – 3 [on SC.4 CORE TEAM + PROJECT DIRECTOR]) 

A presentation of the Project Director has to be provided. 

1. Kindly confirm that no detailed CV has to be submitted for the Project Director.

While “potential experts” need to provide a signed commitment (point 3.1.2.2 – 4. of the same document), the specifications for Lot 1 do not request any such commitment from the Core Team members or the Project Director. 

2. Kindly confirm that Core Team members and the Project Director do not need to sign any document to be included into the tender.
	1. Logically, given the role of the Project Director in the implementation of the contract, his/her presentation must include a detailed CV.

2. Since the Core Team members are considered as members of the staff of the contractor for the purposes of the contract, they are covered and bound by the declarations included in Annexes C and D to the Invitation to Tender.

	ad point 3.1.2.2 – 4. [on SC.5 POTENTIAL EXPERTS]) 

This paragraph is headed by point 3.1.2. “In order to assess the selection criteria (see section 2.2) tenderers and each member of a consortium shall provide the documents described below”. It does, however, at the same time relate to point 2.2. “In the case of consortia, the assessment of SC 4, 5 and 6 will be done for the consortium as a whole” (Annex A1, page 7).
1. In the case of consortia submitting a tender, kindly confirm whether the consortium as a whole needs to present at least 15 potential experts, or whether at least 15 potential experts need to be presented by each consortium member.

The specifications for Lot 1 read that “The list will be accompanied by a signed commitment on the side of the experts to cooperate with the tenderer, subject to availability, should the contract be awarded”. 

2. Kindly confirm that no specific template needs to be respected for this “signed commitment”.

The specifications for Lot 1 read that “experts who do not belong to the core team or the permanent staff of the tenderer may be proposed in more than one tender, provided that this reflects a real availability to work with the potential contractor”.

3. Kindly clarify how “real availability” is assessed by the tender evaluators. 

For example, may an external potential expert decide to commit to one specific evaluation for one (the second) potential contractor to be carried out during the first (second) half of the calendar year. Due to the fact that the specific specifications for specific evaluations to be commissioned by DG ECHO under this framework contract is not yet available at this stage of tendering, “real availability” can hardly be assessed from our point of few. 

Your advice on this is much appreciated
	1. As explained in the Specifications, the assessment of SC 4, 5 and 6 will be done for the consortium as a whole.

2. No specific format is needed but tenderers are kindly requested to provide a standard format for all the proposed experts for the sake of clarity.

3. The aim of the declaration of availability is not to certify the actual availability of experts for future specific contracts, but the capacity of the tenderer to potentially mobilise a network of experts if and when needed. The actual availability of individual experts for potential future specific contracts cannot be tested and is not one of the criteria.

	ad point 3.1.2.2 – 5. [on SC.6 HUMAN RESOURCES]) 

1. Could you please clarify the years for which details of the available support human and technical resources are to be provided? Would 2011, 2012 and 2013 be sufficient?

2. Could you please confirm part-time employees and full-time employees include external consultants, associates etc.? 

Example: An external consultant is contracted for the purpose of a specific project only which, however, runs over 4 years and requires his input full-time during this period –such a person to be included, correct?
	1. Details have to refer to the capacity of the individual tenderer, or the consortium as a whole, at the moment of presenting their offer, as a reference for operational, sustained capacity.
2. For the purposes of this criterion, part-time and full-time employees refer to persons who make part of the staff in charge of the usual running of the company or companies presenting the offer. External experts working on specific projects are not to be considered members of staff, unless duly justified.

	ad point 3.1.2.2 – 5.b. [on SC.6 HUMAN RESOURCES, staff directly involved in the support team]) 

A list needs to be presented of that staff directly involved in the support team.

It is our understanding that also the requested details on “experience, methodological skills and knowledge of languages” are to be included into this list (and not presented by supporting documents). 

Kindly confirm.
	This item refer to the share of the staff employed, as defined in the previous point, who is meant to participate directly in activities supporting the actual implementation of the contract (see section 5.3 in Annex for the definition of this support staff). The experience, skills and knowledge of languages for this staff has to be briefly described for each of the persons concerned. 

	ad point 4.3.) 

The specifications for Lot 1 give detailed information on the specific financial offer. However, no information can be found within the tendering documents that specific invitations to tender will be limited to budget under a specific maximum limit. 

Only the case study indicates a maximum budget of 200,000€ (cf. Annex AI, point 6)”. 

Point 6 of the Annex A1 reads “Specific contracts with a value exceeding Directive 2004/18/EC thresholds (130.000€ at present, subject to periodic revisions) are subject to the standstill period and may not be signed until elapse of 14 calendar days from the day after simultaneous dispatch of award/rejection decisions” but does not exclude the possibility of higher budgets for specific evaluation contracts. 

Kindly clarify whether future evaluation activities will be subject to a maximum budget, and, if so, whether the maximum budget allocated for the case study can be understood as maximum budget also available for future specific evaluations.
	The rules for EU budget do not set any limit for specific contracts under a framework contract. The amount mentioned in the case study refers solely to the case study and cannot be considered in any event as a reference for future specific contracts. 

The specific amount for future specific contracts will be defined on a case by case basis depending on the particular needs and necessary resources related to the assignment.

	ad Annex A1.II: Template for the presentation of staff
1. It is our understanding that this list does not have to include the information about the… 

i) ...Core Team, since the Core Team does not necessarily have to be composed of the tenderer’s in-house staff but can include external consultants as well; 

ii) …Support Team, since the Support Team includes, e.g. accountants that do not need to be sector-experts (Cat. I – IV require sector expertise and/or training) in order to successfully carry out their tasks. In addition, the Support Team will not be involved into expert tasks for specific evaluations, while their labour costs need to be covered by the fee rate overheads (cf. Annex B1, page 11). The Support Team will therefore not be assigned expert categories at the level of specific implementation budgets; in consequence, we do not see the need to assign expert categories to the Support Team at tender level. 

Kindly confirm.

2. In consequence, while assuming that this list needs to be presented in order to support SC.6 on “human and technical resources”, it thus needs to be considered as an additional criterion for SC.6, similar to a “c) list of in-house experts”. 

Kindly clarify and confirm that SC.6 needs to be fulfilled by presenting three kind of information (“a) total number of full-time and part-time staff employed by the tenderers; b) number and list of full time and part time staff directly involved in the support team (see section 5.3 in Annex A) set up for the implementation of the contract, as well as their experience, methodological skills and knowledge of languages” (Annex A1, point 3.1.2.2. – 5); and c) list of in-house experts by presenting a completed Annex A1.II.

3. Kindly confirm that no minimum number of in-house experts needs to be included into this list and that it only should include staff directly employed by the tenderer.

4. Could you kindly clarify what information exactly should be provided within “fields of expertise “(as defined in SC.4, section 3.1.3)”? The referred-to section 3.1.3. is on QC, not on SC; SC.4 is on the Core Team, not on human and technical resources. 
	Annex A1.II is not an additional criterion for assessing SC.6, but additional elements for the assessment, concerning the standing capacity of the tenderer to carry out the tasks defined in Section 1.

You are right in the sense that this should had been mentioned also in section 3.1.2.2-5, which has to be understood, as you suggest, in the following manner:
a) total number of full-time and part-time staff employed by the tenderers; 

b) share, number and list of full time and part time staff directly involved in the support team (see section 5.3 in Annex A) set up for the implementation of the contract, as well as their experience, methodological skills and knowledge of languages;

c) list of in-house experts who may participate in the actual implementation of the tasks described in section 1, to be presented using Annex A1.II.



	ad Annex A1.III: Checklist

ad point SC.6) 

1. Kindly confirm that this line should read “Details of support human and technical resources available” and not “Details of support human and financial resources available”. Reference is made to Annex A.1. point 3.1.2.2 – 5.a.
	You're right: the formulation is not correct, and it should read "Details of human and technical resources available (including Annex A1.II)".

	ad “Price”) 

The checklist is titled “Information to be provided in the administration information part and the technical dossier”. Its last line reads “Price | Expert fees (Annex F to the Invitation to Tender)”. 

In contrary to this, the specifications for Lot 1 read that the financial offer has to include “a) A financial offer comprising the fixed fees per category of expert (…). b) An indicative global price for the case study evaluation” (Annex A1, point 2.3.2.). 

Kindly confirm that the expert fee rates are to be included within the envelope containing the tenderer’s financial offer and that, in consequence, this line should to be deleted from the checklist.


	It is true that the title given to the checklist is not fully correct, but this is less important than the need to ensure that all relevant elements are attached to the offer. The aim of the checklist is to facilitate the preparation of the offers and to make sure that tenderers do not forget any important element. 
Effectively, the financial offer must include the table with the fixed fees per category of expert plus the indicative global price for the case study evaluation in a separate envelope. However, checking it in the checklist will make sure that the list has been added to the tender, even if the envelope is closed.

	Annex B1: Framework Service Contract

	ad article I.3.2, 1st paragraph) 

The framework service contract reads “Prices shall be fixed and not subject to revision during the first year of duration of the FWC.” 

Kindly clarify whether this refers to the expert fee rates as presented in Annex F to the Invitation to Tender, or to the maximum possible value of specific contracts; reference is made to Annex A1, point 6 reading “thresholds (…) subject to periodic revisions”.
	This refers to the expert fee rates presented in the Financial Offer through Annex F.

There is no maximum possible value for specific contracts.

	ad article II.16.1) 

The framework service contract reads “Where provided by the special conditions or by the tender specifications, the contracting authority shall reimburse the expenses that are directly connected with execution of the tasks on production of original supporting documents, including receipts and used tickets, or failing that, on production of copies or scanned originals, or on the basis of flat rates”. 

Point III.3.2. of the same document, however reads that “In addition to the price no reimbursable expenses are foreseen”; in consequence, we understand that specific contracts will be issued as “global price contracts”; also Annex F, the price schedule annexed to the Specific Contract, indicates that the grand total budget will be a “Global Price”. 

Could you therefore kindly clarify whether the term “global price” is only used for award calculation purpose or whether specific evaluation contracts will also be subject to be either i) a “global price contract” (with the contract value and budget’s grand total fixed for the overall implementation of the specific evaluation and no supporting documents to be submitted); or ii) a “fee-based contract” (with all necessary supporting documents to be submitted along with the contractor’s final invoice)?
	Contracts within Lot 1 of the FWC will be based on lump sum prices, in the manner described in section 4.3 of Annex A1.
Article II.16.1 belongs to the Standard General Conditions of Commission's Service Contracts. These articles appear always in our contracts. However, as specified in the first sentence of the paragraph you mention, provisions about reimbursement of expenses are only applied "where provided by the special conditions or by the tender specifications".  As we have seen, the Tender Specifications establish a lump sum system that repels the provisions in article II.16.

Therefore, no reimbursement of expenses or on the basis of actual person/days will be applied for specific contracts.
N.B. This is valid for Lot 1 but not for Lot 2. In the case of Lot 2, payments will be made on the basis of expenses actually incurred.

	ad Annex F) 

1. Kindly confirm that “The global price will be the price taken as price for the award procedure calculation (see specifications point 10.4.)” should read “The global price will be the price taken as price for the award procedure calculation (see specifications point 10.3.)”.
2. Could you clarify why the grand total global price, and not the “total experts fees” are being considered for the award procedure calculation as it is the case e.g. for EU DG DEVCO FWCs?
	Your understanding is correct. There is a typo there that will be corrected in the final version of the contracts.

Because that will be the price that will be paid for the specific contract, and not only the individual expert fees.

	Annex C: Tender Submission Form

	ad 1st table) 

Kindly clarify whether the column “Represented by” should include the name of the specific organisation’s contact person or the name of the company’s legal representative. If otherwise, kindly clarify what information has to be provided within this column.
	It should include the name of the person in the specific organisation who is authorised to act as legal representative of the company for the purposes of the Framework Contract.

	ad point 3 – 2nd paragraph) 

The tender submission form reads “We offer to provide the services requested on the basis of the documents referenced to in the index annexed, which comprise also our technical offer and our financial offer”. 
It is our understanding that this “index” refers to DG ECHO’s tendering document (Invitation to tender and all its annexes). If otherwise, kindly clarify what “index” is referred to.
	You're right: there's a mistake here. This has to be understood as referring to the Tender Specifications and the Contractor's Offer. A revised version of this document will be published on the web page shortly.

	Annex E: Curriculum vitae

	ad point “Staff of <name of the firm>”) 

Kindly inform what kind of information should be provided for consultants not directly employed with the tenderer or one of its consortium members.
	When the member of the core team is part of the staff of one of the members of the consortium, the name of the firm should appear here.
For obvious reasons of reliability and availability, it is expected that if the members of the core team are members of the staff of consultancy firms, these consultancy firms should be part themselves of the consortium.

When the member of the consortium is self-employed, it should appear so.

	ad point 11) 

In case an expert is not directly employed with the tenderer, what kind of information should be provided for “Years within the firm”?
	In case of self-employed experts, this information does not have to be provided.

	ad point 13) 

For each professional experience, the “company and reference person” has to be provided.

1. Kindly confirm in which column information on the client commissioning a job can be included. 

Example: DG ECHO commissioned an evaluation to company X, company X contracts expert Y to be the team leader for this evaluation – could you please clarify whether “DG ECHO” should be indicated in the column “company and reference person”, or rather be included into the column “Description”?

2. Reference persons of professional experience long time ago have changed their job and/or contact details, or have even passed away in the meantime. It is therefore hardly possible to include reference persons for all professional experience an expert has. 

Could you kindly confirm the minimum number of reference persons or the minimum number of years with reference persons required? Example: 10 (7) years for Category I (II) experts?
	1. The client commissioning the job should appear in the "description" box of the cv, together with the description of the job assignment.

2. Obviously, tenderers have to provide reference persons, within the limits of feasibility and availability. If necessary, the evaluation committee may ask for further information during the procedure of evaluation of offers.

	Annex F: Expert fees table
	

	ad point 2 “Evaluation expert fees”) 

Annex F to the invitation to tender indicates a “fixed fee rate” to be listed for each expert category. Other paragraphs in the tendering documents also refer to a fixed fee rate. 

However, the FWC model indicates that “The maximum prices of the services shall be as listed in Annex II” (Annex B1, page 3. “Annex II” is to be the contractor’s tender). 

Could you kindly clarify whether the fee rates for each expert category presented in Annex F to the invitation to tender are the “maximum to be applied” or “fixed” for each specific budget prepared under the FWC. 
	The fee rates are fixed and will not be modified for specific tenders. In the document that you mention, as in the case in all Commission lump sum contracts, "maximum" refers to the fact that the Commission will not in any case pay more than the price mentioned in the Contractor's specific tender.

	general

Kindly confirm that an expert fulfilling one category’s requirements can be included into the budget for a specific evaluation for the fee rate of a lower expert category.


	No. For specific contracts, the fee for standing individual experts (core team members and in-house experts of the consortium) cannot be modified for specific contracts.

On the contrary, the contractor might ask for an expert to be upgraded to a higher category in due time, if his/her experience justifies it so.
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